

2024 ANNUAL SECURITY REPORT

CAPE COD COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Prepared by Steve Connor, Director of Public Safety and Clery Compliance Committee

Contents

ntroduction	1
Preparation for the Annual Security Report and Disclosure of Crime Statistics	1
Campus Law Enforcement Authority & Jurisdiction	2
Prompt & Accurate Reporting of Criminal Offenses	5
Addressing Safety Awareness Programs and Crime Prevention on Campus	6
Addressing Security and Access to Campus Facilities	8
Policy on Limited Confidential Crime Reporting	9
Policy Addressing Issuing Timely Warnings	10
Emergency Notification Response and Evacuation Procedures Statement	10
Statement of Policy Addressing Alcohol and Other Drugs	11
Policy Against Sexual Violence	12
Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sex Offenses	13
Disciplinary Sanctions and Procedures	21
Sex Offender Registration Policy Statement	23
Clery Reportable Crime Statistics	24
Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act and Campus SaVe Act	24
Clery Reportable Offense Definitions	25
Hate Crime Classifications	27
Geography	29
WEST BARNSTABLE CAMPUS – CRIME STATISTICS	30
HYANNIS CENTER CAMPUS - CRIME STATISTICS	32
PLYMOUTH AVIATION CAMPUS – CRIME STATISTICS	34
FUNERAL SERVICES PROGRAM - CRIME STATISTICS	36

Introduction

As required by federal law, CCCC Public Safety yearly crime statistics for this report are compiled on a calendar-year basis in accordance with the definitions of crimes provided by the FBI for use in the Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) system. The report includes statistics for the previous three years concerning reported crimes that occurred on campus to the Cape Cod Community College's Department of Public Safety. In addition, these statistics also include persons referred for campus disciplinary action for categories required under the Clery Act, including liquor and drug law violations and illegal weapons possession. This report is designed to provide information on campus services, crime prevention, support services, reporting methods, trainings, and how our campus alert system RAVE makes notifications in an emergency that would impact the Cape Cod Community College members. The statistics in this publication are for 2023 in accordance with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Crime Statistics Act and the Higher Education Opportunity Act.

The safety and well-being of our students, faculty, and staff is the priority for the Public Safety Department at 4C's. As a small college, we strive to provide all members of its community with a secure environment in which to learn, study, and work. I encourage you to read this report and consider how this information can assist you.

Sincerely,

Steve Connor **Director of Public Safety** Cape Cod Community College Police Department Grossman Commons, C-G6, 2240 Iyannough Road West Barnstable, Massachusetts 02668 (774) 330-4866; sconnor@capecod.edu

Preparation for the Annual Security Report and Disclosure of Crime **Statistics**

The Cape Cod Community College prepares this report to comply with the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security and Crime Statistics Act using information maintained by the Public Safety Department, information provided by other College departments, Campus Security Authorities, and information provided by state and local law enforcement agencies. This report provides statistics for the previous three years concerning reported crimes that occurred on campus, as well as in certain offcampus buildings or property owned, leased or controlled by Cape Cod Community College. This report also includes institutional policies concerning campus security, such as policies regarding sexual assault, alcohol and other drugs.

Each year an email notification is made to all enrolled students, faculty, and staff on how to access the Annual Security Report both on-line and in printed form. Copies of this report may be obtained at the following locations:

- College Public Safety Office, 2240 Iyannough Road, West Barnstable, MA, 02668, Grossman Commons, C-G6,
- Reception Desk at Hyannis Center Campus, 540 Main Street, Hyannis, MA, 02601
- Reception Desk at Plymouth Aviation Campus, Plymouth Municipal Airport, 246 S. Meadow Road. Gate 6, Plymouth, MA, 02360 (The address of record for the Plymouth Aviation campus changed in 2024 to 660 Burke's Way Plymouth MA, 02360)
- On-line at www.capecod.edu/collegepolice/campus-security-reports under Campus Security Reports.

All prospective employees may obtain a copy from the Office of Human Resources, and all prospective students may obtain a copy from the Office of Admissions.

Campus Law Enforcement Authority & Jurisdiction

Police Officers

The College employs a hybrid public safety model to ensure a safe environment for students, faculty, staff and visitors. The Department's director and investigator are sworn officers are commissioned in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 22C § 63 and have met the standards set by the Massachusetts Peace Officer Standards and Training (POST) Commission. They can make arrests, carry firearms and investigate crimes on campus. Additionally, these officers respond to calls for service which may include crimes and emergencies and support campus community outreach and training. The Department is partnered with the College's Counseling and Wellness program and collaborates to help create physical and psychological safety on campus. Local Police and the Massachusetts State Police have concurrent jurisdiction on all campuses and upon all properties owned or controlled by the College.

Public Safety Officers

CCCC employs state Institutional Security Officers and additional contracted security personnel who are uniformed public safety professionals authorized to enforce certain rules and regulations on campus. They do not carry firearms or make arrests. They provide high quality customer service and emergency response at the main campus and Plymouth Aviation campus. Local law enforcement may be notified of any situation where state law may have been violated or where additional resources are needed. Public Safety Officers conduct patrols on foot and by vehicle, inspecting buildings both interior and exterior on a regular basis. Their duties are to observe, report and diffuse situations. CCCC Public Safety officers are on duty 24 hours a day at the main campus and will contact campus police and/or Barnstable Police Department when a situation arises requiring police powers.

College Locations

Main Campus - 2240 Iyannough Road, West Barnstable MA, 02668

The Public Safety Department is located on the first floor in the Grossman Commons Building, West Barnstable (Main) campus, room C-G6, opposite the cafeteria. Public Safety Campus is staffed 365 days per year, twenty-four (24) hours per day/seven (7) days per week. CCCC Public Safety is the primary responder to all incidents on the main campus and maintains a professional relationship with

Barnstable Police Department and the Massachusetts State Police who provide back-up and emergency service. Barnstable Police Department and Massachusetts State Police also provide investigator support for major crimes on campus.

West Barnstable, Main Campus

- Emergency Phone-dial "4349" from any internal phone or "911" or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.
- Non-emergencies-dial "4349" from any internal phone or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.
- Barnstable Police Department- dial 911
- West Barnstable Fire Department/EMT-dial 911
- Director of Public Safety-dial 4866 or (774) 330-4866

Hyannis Center-540 Main Street Hyannis, MA, 02601

CCCC Public Safety is the primary law enforcement responder for all crimes not in progress at the Hyannis Center. There are no police or security services provided at this location by CCCC, therefore, the Daily Crime Log and associated rules and patrol jurisdiction do not apply. Public Safety maintains a professional relationship with Barnstable Police Department and the Massachusetts State Police who provide primary response and emergency service to the Hyannis Center Campus. Barnstable Police Department and Massachusetts State Police also provide investigator support for major crimes. The building is controlled by the Hyannis Center administration or facilities staff. No formal M.O.U. exists for the response or investigation of crimes.

Hyannis Center Campus

- Emergency Phone-dial "4349" from any internal phone or "911" or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.
- Non-emergencies-dial "4349" from any internal phone or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.
- Barnstable Police Department-(508) 775-0387
- Director of Public Safety-dial 4866 or (774) 330-4866

Plymouth Aviation Campus-246 S. Meadow Road. Gate 6, Plymouth, MA 02360 (The address of record for the Plymouth Aviation campus changed in 2024 to 660 Burke's Way Plymouth MA, 02360)

Plymouth Police Department is the primary law enforcement responder for all crimes and emergencies at the Plymouth Aviation Campus. CCCC Public Safety provides evening security services at this location. Public Safety maintains a professional relationship with Plymouth Police Department and the Massachusetts State Police who provide back up and emergency services at this campus. No formal M.O.U. exists for the response or investigation of crimes.

Plymouth Aviation Campus

- Emergency Phone-dial "911" from any internal phone followed by CCCC Public Safety at "4349" or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.
- Non-emergencies-dial "4349" from any internal phone or (774) 330-4349 from a cell phone or outside line.

- Plymouth Police Department-dial (508) 830-4218
- Director of Public Safety-dial 4866 or (774) 330-4866

BSU Funeral Service Program Campus 66 Hooper St, Bridgewater, MA 02325

Bridgewater State University Police are located in the Operations Center at 200 Great Hill Drive, Bridgewater, MA. BSU PD is the primary responder to all incidents or emergencies at Burnell Hall where classroom space is leased by Cape Cod Community College for its Funeral Service Program. CCCC Public Safety has an excellent working relationship with BSU PD. CCCC officers do not control access to the building or grounds and provide no police or security services, therefore, the Daily Crime Log and associated rules and patrol jurisdiction do not apply. Crimes are investigated jointly.

Funeral Service Program at Bridgewater State University

- Emergency Phone BSU PD- Call 911 or (508) 531 1212
- Non-emergency Phone BSU-(508) 531 1212
- Chief of Police BSU-dial (508) 531 6140
- Bridgewater Police Department-dial (508) 697 0914
- Director of Public Safety CCCC- dial (774) 330-4866

Martha's Vineyard Regional High School (MVRS)-Non Campus

Oak Bluffs Police Department is located at 2 Oak Bluffs Avenue, Oak Bluffs, MA and is the primary responder to all incidents or emergencies at the MVRS. Cape Cod Community College has both day and evening classes.

CCCC officers do not control access to the buildings or grounds or provide any police or security services at this location, therefore the Daily Crime Log and associated rules and patrol jurisdiction do not apply. Crimes are investigated jointly.

MVRS (non-campus)

- Emergency Phone-Dial 911
- Non-emergency Phone- (508) 693 1033
- Oak Bluffs Police Department-(508) 693 0750
- Director of Public Safety CCCC- Dial (774) 330 4866

Interagency Contact Information by Location:

• West Barnstable Campus:

Barnstable Police Department: (508) 775-0387 Massachusetts State Police: (508) 398-2323

Hyannis Center Campus:

Barnstable Police Department: (508) 775-0387 Massachusetts State Police: (508) 398-2323

• Plymouth Aviation Campus:

Plymouth Police Department: (508) 830-4218

Massachusetts State Police: (781) 659-7911

• Funeral Service Program:

Bridgewater State University Police: (508) 531-1212 (BSU Campus)

Plymouth Police Department: (508) 830-4218 Massachusetts State Police: (508) 947-2222

MVRS:

Oak Bluffs Police Department: (508) 693-0750 Massachusetts State Police: (508) 693-0545

Prompt & Accurate Reporting of Criminal Offenses

CCCC encourages community members, students, faculty, staff and guests to report all crimes, public safety related incidents and emergencies to the Public Safety Department and/or appropriate law enforcement agencies in an accurate & timely manner. Contact information can be found below:

Contact Reporting Information by Location

- West Barnstable Campus- (774) 330-4349 or ext. 4349 on campus phone
- Hyannis Center Campus- (508) 375-5000
- Plymouth Aviation Campus- (508) 375-5050
- Funeral Services Campus-(508) 508-531-3461
- MVRS- 508-367-5792

To report a crime or emergency in progress from any campus location at any time, dial 911 immediately and call the Public Safety Department if it is safe to do so after dialing 911. To report a non-emergency security or public safety-related matter from a non-campus telephone, dial (773) 330-4349. Crimes should be reported to the Public Safety Department to ensure inclusion in the annual crime statistics and to aid in providing timely warning notices to the community when warranted.

When reporting an emergency or situation, please be prepared to:

- Identify yourself;
- Give the location that you are calling from;
- State the nature of the incident/emergency of your call.

Depending on the call, public safety personnel/police may ask you to stay on the line. To report a crime that occurs at an off-campus location, please contact the appropriate police department or other emergency departments.

Campus and Non-campus Telephone Numbers by Location:

West Barnstable

CCCC Public Safety: (774) 330-4349 outside line, or Ext. 4349 on college phone

Barnstable Police Department: (508) 775-0387

Massachusetts State Police: (508) 398-2323 South Yarmouth Barracks

Hyannis Center

CCCC Public Safety: (774) 330-4349 outside line, or Ext. 4349 on college phone

Barnstable Police Department: (508) 775-0387

Massachusetts State Police: (508) 398-2323 South Yarmouth Barracks

Plymouth Aviation

CCCC Public Safety: (774) 330-4349 outside line, or Ext. 4349 on college phone

Plymouth Police Department: (508) 830-4218

Massachusetts State Police: (781) 659-7911 Norwell Barracks

BSU Funeral Services Program

CCCC Police (774) 330-4349

Bridgewater State University Police: (508) 531-1212

Massachusetts State Police: (508) 947-2222 Middleborough Barracks

MVRS

Oak Bluffs Police Department: (508) 693-0750

Massachusetts State Police: (508) 693-0545 Oaks Bluffs Barracks

Addressing Safety Awareness Programs and Crime Prevention on Campus

All community members should use the "See Something, Say Something" concept to help keep the college community safe.

The possession, carrying and use of weapons, ammunition, or explosives is prohibited on College owned or controlled property with the exception of on-duty Law Enforcement Officials employed by a Federal, State or Local Police agency.

CCCC Public Safety offers the following services in addition to crime prevention programs and its safety and security duties:

Daily Crime Log

The Daily Crime Log contains all crimes reported to the Public Safety Department versus the Annual Security Report which includes only Clery Act crimes. The Daily Crime Log lists crimes using state crime definitions, whereas the Annual Security Report lists crimes using definitions required by the Clery Act under Federal regulation, which may differ from the state definitions. In compliance with the Clery Act, these logs are open to public inspection during regular business hours for the most recent sixty (60) day period.

Vehicle Assistance

College Police can assist a motorist with a jump- start to vehicles that have a dead battery.

Parking Lot Patrol and Personal Safety Escorts

Public Safety officers patrol the campus parking lots regularly during each shift. Officers will also escort students and employees to and from campus buildings and parking lots after dark. To request an escort, call (774) 330-4349 or ext. 4349 on main campus phones or see the desk officer at the Plymouth AMT campus.

Lost and Found

For lost items found on the main campus, go the Public Safety office in the Grossman Commons Building, room CG-6. If you have lost property, call the Public Safety Department at (774) 330-4349 to see if it was turned in. All items received by Lost and Found are recorded in a log which includes the description of the item, where it was found, who turned in the item and the date and time it was turned in. If a lost item has identification on it, an officer will try to reach the owner by phone, e-mail or in person. Articles such as textbooks, reference books, workbooks, etc. are turned over to the Office of Student Life after thirty (30) days. Articles of clothing, notebooks, pens, etc. are held for ninety (90) days and then disposed. Items of monetary value, valuable jewelry and electronic equipment shall be retained for one year (365 days) and then disposed of. Currency is recorded and turned into the Comptroller's Office.

Motor Vehicle Accident Reports

Public Safety will generate an incident report for any accident that occurs on college property for submission to the insurance company.

Lighting and Safety Hazards

Conditions are promptly reported to facilities through a work order system.

Distribution of Public Safety Contact Phone Number

CCCC officers may distribute novelties with the Department's emergency contact phone number.

Active Shooter Training (C.R.A.S.E.)

Proactive training for active shooter situations.

SafetyNET Radio System

Several departments on the main campus have direct radio communication with Public Safety.

CPR/AED, Narcan and Stop the Bleed Training

Public Safety trains in basic life support for medical emergencies.

Behavioral Intervention Team (BIT)

Public Safety supports the College's BIT to assess threatening or dangerous behavior on campus.

Addressing Security and Access to Campus Facilities

During business hours, the main campus will be open to students, parents, employees, contractors, guests, and invitees. During non-business hours, access to all College facilities is by key, if issued, by admittance via the Public Safety Department, or by the landlord in the case of satellite campuses. In the case of periods of closing, the College will admit only those with prior permission. Emergencies may necessitate changes or alterations to any posted schedules.

Main Campus, West Barnstable

No unauthorized persons are allowed into campus buildings off-hours without prior permission or unless accompanied by an authorized person. College staff or students needing access to buildings during off-hours are required to make arrangements with Public Safety at (774) 330-4349. Some facilities, such as the Fitness Center, Tilden Arts Center and Library may have individual hours which may vary at different times of the year. In these cases, the facilities will be secured according to schedules developed by the department or administration responsible for the facility. Emergencies may necessitate changes or alterations to any posted schedules. CCCC Public Safety may require identification and verification prior to giving access to properties. All members of the campus community are advised to carry and wear their College ID card. The College issues identifiable electronic swipe cards ("keycards") to staff and faculty.

Hyannis Center

The Hyannis Center is opened by administrators with a reception desk monitoring and controlling access through a door release button upon verification. Receptionist has option of securing entrance and monitoring through the intercom and security camera system. All members of the campus community are advised to carry and wear their College ID card. The College issues identifiable electronic swipe cards ("keycards") to staff and faculty.

Plymouth Aviation

Plymouth Aviation is opened by administrators and access is through a staffed desk monitor. Exterior cameras are monitored for persons entering through parking lot. All members of the campus community are advised to carry and wear their College ID card. The College issues identifiable electronic swipe cards ("keycards") to staff, students and faculty.

BSU Funeral Service

CCCC Funeral Service Program Administrators control access to the leased space through a dedicated key system. Students are required to carry CCCC ID card while staff and faculty is optional. Bridgewater State University Police Department patrols campus property.

MVRS (non-campus)

MVRS administration controls accessibility into the school. Students are required to carry College ID card while staff and faculty are optional. Oak Bluffs Police Department patrols High School property.

Campus Security/Key Program

Safety and security are a priority at CCCC. As such, CCCC maintains a key tracking system. Keys are tracked and issued by the Facilities Department.

Policy on Limited Confidential Crime Reporting

A Campus Security Authority is an "official of an institution who has significant responsibility for student and campus activities. An official is defined as "any person who has the authority and the duty to take action or respond to particular issues on behalf of the institution." While CCCC recommends and encourages crime reporting to Public Safety or local police, we also recognize that some may prefer to report to other individuals or College offices. Under the law, a Campus Security Authority (CSAs) is mandated to report Clery crimes brought to their attention for immediate action by the College and for inclusion in the Annual Security Report. However, CSAs can still keep the individual's identity confidential when sharing the information with Public Safety. For certain crimes and offenses under VAWA or Title IX, all information must be reported to the college's Title IX director for follow-up investigation.

Cape Cod Community College's CSAs include the following, but is not limited to:

Vice-President of Academic Affairs Vice-President of Finance and Operations Associate Vice President of Human Resources College Deans (all Departments) Student Conduct Administrator Title IX Coordinator Public Safety staff & contract officers Advisors of Student Clubs and Organizations

All CSAs should encourage any person who reports a crime or other incident involving campus security to notify Public Safety immediately. Any CSA who receives a report of an incident involving a crime or campus security matter must contact CCCC Public Safety immediately to report the incident consistent with confidentiality considerations.

<u>Pastoral & Professional Counselors</u>

CCCC does not employ pastoral counselors. However professional counselors are located at the CCCC Counseling and Wellness Center/Bldg 10. Their official responsibilities include providing psychological counseling and, when they are functioning within the scope of his/her license or certification, are not required to disclose reports of crimes for inclusion into the annual security report. They are encouraged, if they deem it appropriate, to inform people being counseled of the procedures to report crimes on a voluntary basis for inclusion in the annual crime report. If, however, information received is deemed to indicate a potential safety risk to others in the College community, there may be an obligation to report those details necessary for the College to appropriately address the threat and make appropriate notifications. In such cases, the reporting person's identity will be kept confidential to the extent permissible by law.

Policy Addressing Issuing Timely Warnings

It is the College's policy to be transparent with the campus community about security matters. When Public Safety becomes aware of any crime that may pose a serious or ongoing threat to members of the community, a "Timely Warning" will be issued as soon as all pertinent facts are available. CCCC issues these warnings upon approval of Senior Leadership (President, Vice Presidents, and Director of Strategic Communications). Timely Warnings will generally be made for crimes such as; homicide, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, sexual assaults, and hate crimes where there is a continued threat to the campus community. The college will send these warnings in a variety of ways, including but not limited to campus e-mails, fliers, social media, the CCCC website, and other media if necessary. The purpose of these Timely Warnings is to notify the campus of the incident and to provide information that may enable them to protect themselves from similar incidents. The College will issue Timely Warnings whenever the following criteria are met: (i) a Clery Act crime is committed; (ii) the perpetrator has not been apprehended; and (iii) there is a substantial risk to the physical safety of other members of the campus community because of this crime. Timely Warnings may often ask members of the community for their help in gathering information about an incident or in identifying those responsible.

Emergency Notification Response and Evacuation Procedures Statement

Cape Cod Community College treats every potential emergency on a case-by-case basis. CCCC Senior Leadership (President, Vice Presidents or designee, or Director of Strategic Communications) determines how and when to notify the community of a pending emergency or need to evacuate a specific campus location based on several criteria including but not limited to:

- Proximity to the campus
- Immediacy of the threat
- Type of Emergency (i.e. Active Shooter; Hazmat spill, etc.)
- Confirmation of emergency by First Responding units (Campus Police, Security, etc.)

When any of these instances (or others) exist, CCCC will, immediately and without delay, determine the content of the notification and initiate the Rave notification system as detailed below, unless issuing a notification will, in the professional judgement of responsible authorities, compromise efforts to assist a victim or contain, respond to, or otherwise mitigate the emergency.

If a serious incident occurs that causes an immediate threat to the Main campus, the first responders to the scene are usually Public Safety security officers followed by emergency responders. For other campus locations, call 911 to report the emergency. First responders to all other campus locations will be local emergency service providers.

Depending on the type of emergency and all other variables, members of the campus community are encouraged to make individual decisions about personal safety in choosing whether to evacuate using fire exits, or shelter in place.

An order to evacuate, seek shelter and/or other emergency notification(s) may be received via one or more of the following:

- Audible alarm signals
- Visible alarms
- Mass Notification System (RAVE)/SMS
- Campus email
- CCCC social media platforms

In the event of an evacuation, all faculty, students, and staff, and the public must immediately exit the building or effected area and follow the instructions of first responders. Weather related emergencies may advise the campus community to seek shelter indoors whereas an immediate active threat may require individuals to make individual decisions about personal safety.

All campuses and non-campus properties maintain an audible fire alarm system. The alarm signal is a unique emission from the horns placed throughout and flashes a white emergency light. Fire alarm pull boxes are in the halls throughout each building. Each space in the College and non-campuses contains a sign labeled "FIRE EXIT" which identifies primary and secondary routes.

The College will conduct regularly scheduled drills, exercises, and appropriate follow-through activities designed for assessment and evaluation of emergency plans and capabilities. A test of the emergency notification system and announced or unannounced fire drills may occur on an annual basis.

When Senior Leadership decides to close the campus due to severe weather or other emergency conditions the College Strategic Communications and Marketing Department updates the College website, sends an alert via the RAVE system, and notifies local radio and TV stations to run closing announcements. The quickest and most reliable source of information is via text message.

Sign up for text messaging and emergency notifications at https://www.getrave.com/login/capecod.

If relying on public announcements via radio or television listen for the specific mention of the College since it may not close when county public schools close. If public schools close for inclement weather or emergencies, all College classes held at public school locations are canceled. When the College closes, all classes at off-campus sites are canceled.

Statement of Policy Addressing Alcohol and Other Drugs

Cape Cod Community College prohibits the unlawful possession, distribution, and/or consumption of alcoholic products, as well as the possession, use and distribution of illegal/controlled drugs and paraphernalia. All community members are expected to fully comply with the College's policies and with state and federal laws. Any disciplinary action imposed by the College for violations of its drug or alcohol policies may be in addition to any penalty imposed by an off-campus authority. Both students and employees are subject to prosecution under applicable state and federal laws.

In accordance with Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act, Amendments of 1989 (P.L. 101-226 20 U.S.C. 1145g) college regulations and laws pertaining to alcoholic substances and the possession, use, distribution and sale of certain drugs (including medical and recreational cannabis) shall be strictly and consistently enforced. Violations of the College's Student Code of Conduct or violation of Federal, State or local laws shall subject the violator to the College's disciplinary process and/or criminal prosecution.

Although Massachusetts law permits the use of medical marijuana and the possession, use, distribution and cultivation of marijuana in limited amounts, federal law prohibits the possession, use, distribution and/or cultivation of marijuana at educational institutions. Accordingly, the possession of marijuana/cannabis in any form, even for medical purposes, is prohibited on all Cape Cod Community College property or at college sponsored events and activities. Paraphernalia or accessories are also prohibited including but not limited to any device used for smoking, ingesting, inhaling, or otherwise introducing marijuana into the human body.

All members of Cape Cod Community College are responsible for understanding and adhering to this policy while on campus. The College follows the Massachusetts Community College System Student Code of Conduct, which can be found at: http://www.capecod.edu/web/studen-tlife/code-of-conduct.

Drug and Alcohol Abuse Education Programs

The State Department of Public Health, Division of Substance Abuse provides an information and referral hotline; (800)327-5050 (TDD 617-547- 2111) to provide confidential assistance. Locally, the Cape Cod Council on Alcoholism (508-771-0132) is available to provide confidential assistance and support services.

College Resources

For any member of the CCCC community who is experiencing substance abuse problems, Cape Cod Community College stands ready to offer supportive services and referral for treatment, as appropriate and available. Information concerning substance abuse and rehabilitation counseling programs is available through the following College resources:

- (1) Substance Abuse Education-Student Life Information. Students facing substance misuse challenges are encouraged to contact the Student Wellness Office at wellness@capecod.edu. The Student Wellness Office can provide assistance on students seeking support for substance misuse on and off campus.
- (2) Employees facing substance misuse challenges are encouraged to contact Human Resources or the Employee Assistance Program.

The Counseling and Wellness Team is available to students on a walk in basis. Please feel free to contact any member of the team if you are in need of assistance or if you have any immediate questions or concerns.

Policy Against Sexual Violence

CCCC maintains a comprehensive Sexual Misconduct, Relationship Violence and Stalking Policy. CCCC is required to comply with Title IX of the Higher Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S. s.1681 et seq. ("Title IX") which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities.

CCCC is committed to providing an atmosphere for learning that is free of any conduct that could be considered harassing, abusive, disorderly, discriminatory or criminal. As such, CCCC prohibits sexual misconduct (including sexual harassment and sexual assault), domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking all of which violate Federal Civil Rights law, and may be subject to criminal prosecution. CCCC is committed to fostering a community that promotes prompt reporting of sexual misconduct, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking in any form.

Sexual violence is defined under the Board of Higher Education/Massachusetts Community Colleges' Policy on Affirmative Action, Equal Opportunity & Diversity ("Policy on Affirmative Action") and includes rape, acquaintance rape and sexual assault. Sexual violence may also include "intimate partner violence" such as stalking, dating violence, or domestic violence. Sexual violence is prohibited under Title IX of the Educational Amendment Act of 1972, state law and the Policy on Affirmative Action.

CCCC is committed to timely and fair resolution of complaints. Creating a safe and respectful environment is the responsibility of all members of the College community; students, staff, faculty, and guests. This policy covers sexual misconduct, sexual assault, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking as defined by Title IX and the Clery Act (pursuant to the Reauthorization of the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA).

Violence Against Women Act

CCCC prohibits the offenses of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking (as defined by the Clery Act) and reaffirms its commitment to maintaining a campus environment that emphasizes the dignity and worth of all members of the college community. Toward that end, CCCC issues this statement of policy to inform the campus community of our programs to address domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and stalking as well as the procedures for institutional disciplinary action in cases of alleged dating violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking, which will be followed regardless of whether the incident occurs on or off campus when it is reported to a CCCC official.

Policy on Preventing and Responding to Sex Offenses

Cape Cod Community College is committed to providing an atmosphere for learning that is free of any conduct that could be considered harassing, abusive or disorderly. In order to assure that the College meets its obligation to all members of the community, the procedures and programs set forth on the following pages have been established and align with The Policy on Affirmative Action (PAA).

Copies of the Policy on Affirmative Action (PAA) are available in the offices of the Vice Presidents, Deans, Department Chairs, Student Advising and Counseling Office, Library and the Affirmative Action and Public Safety Department offices. The PAA can be found on the Cape Cod Community College website.

Sexual assault is a criminal offense. Sexual assault in any form, including acquaintance rape, will not be tolerated.

Sexual assault, as defined in the Federal Bureau of Investigation Uniform Crime Reporting System

includes forcible and non-forcible offenses. A listing and definition of all forcible and non-forcible offenses for which an individual may be disciplined under this policy and procedures is contained in Appendix A, which is available for review at the Office of Health Services.

The Crime Awareness and Campus Security Act of 1990 Section 485(f)(1)(F) of 20 U.S.C. 1092(a), (1) (Public Law 101-542) requires that the Colleges collect information with respect to sexual assault on campus and, beginning in September 1993, to include such information in an annual security report. The Higher Education Amendments of 1992 (Public Law 102-325) provide further that as part of the annual security report the Colleges shall include, develop and distribute a statement of policy regarding the Col-leges' sexual assault programs and the procedures to be followed once a sex offense has occurred.

When an allegation of sexual assault is made, the Colleges will encourage the alleged victim to pursue criminal prosecution under the Massachusetts criminal statutes. In addition, appropriate campus disciplinary action may be pursued. Sanctions for sexual assault violations may include, in addition to criminal charges, suspension, dismissal or expulsion from the College. All allegations of sexual assault will be handled confidentially and will be investigated. Both the accuser and the accused will have equal opportunity for hearing.

Programs

In accordance with the 2021Campus Sexual Assault Law, CCCC requires annual Title IX training and education for all students and new employees. Student training addresses: Definition of sex-based discrimination, harassment and assault, bystander interventions, and reporting and grievance procedures. Employee Training must address: The recipient's obligation to address sex discrimination in its education program or activity; The scope of conduct that constitutes sex discrimination under Title IX and this part, including the definition of sex-based harassment; and all applicable notification and information requirements under §§ 106.40(b)(2) and 106.44.

SAFETY TIPS TO REDUCE RISK AND INCREASE SAFETY

While there is no surefire way to prevent a sexual assault or other violence, there are some things you can do to help reduce your risk of being assaulted. All CCCC students, staff and faculty should be aware of measures to take in preventing the risk of violence and creating a safer campus community. Here are some simple and useful strategies to keeping yourself and others safe:

Personal Safety Tips:

- Stay aware of your surroundings. Knowing where you are and who is around you may help you to find a way to get out of a bad situation.
- Try to avoid isolated areas. It is more difficult to get help if no one else is around.
- Walk with purpose. Even if you do not know where you are going, act like you do.
- Trust your gut. If you get the feeling that a situation is unsafe or uncomfortable, it probably is not the best place to be.
- Make sure your cell phone is with you and charged and that you have money for a cab if necessary.
- Avoid being left alone with someone you do not trust or someone you do not know.

- Avoid wearing headphones so you can be more aware of your surroundings, especially if you are walking alone or after dark.
- If you choose to drink alcohol, do not accept drinks from people you do not know or trust and do not leave your drink unattended. If you choose to accept a drink from someone, be sure that you watch the drink being poured and carry it yourself, even if someone offers to hold it for you. If you have left your drink alone, even for a few minutes, get a new one.
- Remember that you have the right to say no to anything that makes you feel pressured, uncomfortable, or unsafe. Saying "I don't want to" or "I don't feel like it" is always a good enough reason.

How to respond if Someone Else is At Risk:

- Ask the person if they need help or offer to call someone for them or call CCCC's Public Safety Department if on the main campus.
- Be direct and tell someone if they are talking or acting out of line. Ask them to leave the potential victim alone.
- Keep an eye out for friends and walk-in pairs or small groups if possible.
- If a friend or peer seems out of it, is way too intoxicated for the amount of alcohol they've had, or is acting out of character, get him or her to a safe place immediately.
- Do not assume that if no one else is speaking up, that everyone else is fine with what is happening. Often other people will back you up if you say something.

Relationship Violence

Someone involved in an abusive relationship (emotional abuse, physical abuse, etc.), may display some or all the following signs:

- Injuries in multiple stages of healing (often bruises of various colors)
- Fear of displeasing partner
- Spending less time with friends
- Withdrawal from activities that one typically enjoys
- Focusing all of one's energy on their partner
- Inconsistent explanations about cause of injuries due to fear of letting others know the severity of the situation

Here are some signs of an abusive partner in a relationship:

- Explosive temper, mood swings
- Threats and intimidation
- Jealousy or possessiveness
- Blames victim for abuser's behavior ("You're making me act this way")
- Verbal abuse: insulting or hurtful language, putting the victim down in front of others, making the victim think s/he is crazy, playing mind games
- Stalking behaviors such as following, watching from a distance, unwanted or excessive communication
- Invasion of privacy or obsessive tracking of the victim's activities
- Isolating and controlling what the victim does, sees, and reads, limiting who the victim talks to
- Smashing things, abusing pets, destroying the victim's property, displaying weapons

Be an Ally Against Sexual Violence and Harassment:

- Be willing to speak up in difficult situations.
- Talk about sexual assault, relationship violence, and stalking with friends or share information and resources through social media.
- Be conscious of your use of language and choose your words carefully. Cultural messages can support or discourage violence.
- Challenge societal messages about what it means to be male or female and be supportive when someone challenges gender stereotypes.
- Be aware of and avoid using sexist, homophobic, and other demeaning language.
- Do not joke about sexual assault. Comments and jokes that are meant to "loosen things up" or are "just kidding around" trivialize the severity of the behavior.

The content above is adapted from RAINN, Rape, Abuse, and Incest National Network: https://www.rainn.org/safety-students, and the National Sexual Violence Resource Center: http://www.nsvrc.org

Procedures in the Event a Sexual Assault Occurs

An effective response to a report or incident of sexual assault on campus necessarily involves several offices and individuals concerned with the physical and emotional security of students, employees, and visitors.

If someone is the victim of a sexual assault, the victim has several rights, including the right to report the incident to Public Safety or local authorities, such as Barnstable, Bridgewater or Plymouth Police. The College, through its Campus Security Authorities (CSAs) will also assist victims in notifying either Public Safety or the local police. There is also the ability to speak confidentially to a professional counselor. Filing a report with Public Safety, a CSA, or a police report does not mean the victim must pursue criminal charges. The victim maintains his or her rights throughout both the internal and external processes.

The possible sanctions for rape, acquaintance rape, or other sex offenses (forcible or non-forcible) are addressed by the Cape Cod Community College Student Code of Conduct https://www.capecod.edu/handbook/student- code of-conduct/ and the College's Sexual Harassment Policy- https://www.capecod.edu/policies/sexualharass-ment-policy/

Forcible sex offenses are defined as "any sexual act directed against another person, forcible and /or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will when the victim is incapable of giving consent.

Forcible offenses include:

- 1. Forcible Rape: the carnal knowledge of a person forcibly and against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent.
- 2. Forcible Sodomy: oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, forcibly and/or against the person's will; or not forcibly or against the per-son's will where the victim is incapable of giving

consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

- 3. Sexual Assault with an Object: to use an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate, however slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, forcibly and/or against the per-son's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- 4. Forcible Fondling: the touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity.

Non-forcible sex offenses are defined as "unlawful, non-forcible sexual intercourse." Non-forcible sex offenses include:

- 1. Incest: non-forcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- 2. Statutory Rape: non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Consent: In reference to sexual activity, consent occurs when individuals willingly, unambiguously, and knowingly agree to engage in sexual activity in a clear and affirmatively communicated way, understood by all the parties involved. Consent is active, not passive. Signals of consent must be part of a mutual and ongoing process, offered freely and knowingly. Consent can be given by words or actions if they create clear, mutually understandable permission regarding the conditions of sexual activity. Relying solely on non-verbal communication can lead to misunderstandings and harmful consequences for all of the parties involved because this form of communication may be unclear. Individuals should be able to clearly articulate why and how they knew they had received consent and what they considered indications of consent before they engaged in sexual behavior.

It is important to remember:

- Consent to one sexual act does not constitute or imply consent to another act
- Previous consent cannot imply consent to future sexual acts
- Consent is always required and cannot be assumed based on the parties' relationship status or sexual history together
- Consent can be withdrawn at any time before or during sexual activity by either party

Recommended Procedures for a Victim of Sexual Violence

For a person subjected to an act of sexual violence, there can be time-sensitive decisions to make about sexually transmitted infections, pregnancy, and collecting physical evidence in the event of prosecution. Therefore, victims of sexual violence are advised to:

Protect Yourself and Get Medical Attention – Find a safe place as soon as possible and seek medical attention immediately. Injuries and exposure to disease may not be immediately apparent. A medical examination can provide necessary treatment and collect important evidence. It is recommended that a physical exam be conducted within 72 hours of the incident. Submitting to a physical exam does not mean that a victim is required to press charges. This action merely preserves the option to do so.

Preserve Evidence - It is important to preserve all physical evidence following an act of sexual violence. If possible, a victim should not wash, eat, drink, douche, clean, use the bathroom, or change clothes. If clothes are changed, all clothes that were worn at the time of the incident should not be cleaned and should be placed into a clean paper bag.

Reporting Complaints of Sexual Violence

If you are the survivor (victim) of a sexual assault, sexual misconduct, domestic violence, dating violence or stalking at this institution, your priority should be to get to a place of safety and to obtain necessary medical treatment.

A victim of sexual violence has the right to file (or not file) an Affirmative Action Discrimination Complaint Form with the College. The process for filing a complaint is outlined under the Policy on Affirmative Action's Complaint Procedure. For more information or for assistance with filing a complaint, please contact the College's Title IX Coordinator. Contact information is available on the website or can be found by calling Human Resources (774) 330-4307.

https://www.capecod.edu/media/capecodedu/content-assets/documents/policies/2024-Affirmative-Action-Equal-Opportunity-and-Diversity-Policy-Final.pdf

A victim may also choose to file a criminal complaint, in which case the Title IX Coordinator and/or Public Safety can assist the victim with that process.

Filing a police report regarding a sexual assault with a police officer will not obligate the survivor to prosecute. However, in the case of a report of domestic violence or dating violence or stalking (if such case also involves domestic violence or dating violence), and if the perpetrator is identified and probable cause exists, the police officer may be required to take legal action, including arrest/warrant application, considering first and foremost, the safety of the survivor.

The decision whether to prosecute does not negate the responsibility of the College to investigate and take disciplinary action if the suspect is associated with the College. The College may also have an obligation to issue a timely notice for the safety of others in the College community. The survivor's identity will be withheld to the extent permissible by law. Despite the survivor's desire not to prosecute, the College may also have an obligation to investigate to the extent possible in consideration of the details known and may have an obligation to take action against the perpetrator for the safety of the campus community. The College may also institute protective measures, such as a no-trespass order, restricted access to campus, adjusted class or work schedule, or a leave of absence during the investigative process and/or upon completion of the disciplinary process. A person found to have

committed an act of sexual violence shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including suspension, expulsion, or termination from the College.

Sexual Violence- Rights and Information

The following information is provided to assist members of the College community with understanding the rights, protections and services available to victims of sexual violence.

Personal identifiable information about a victim will be treated as confidential and only shared with persons with a specific need to know and/or who are investigating and/or adjudicating the complaint, delivering resources or support services to the victim or as public safety requires. The College does not publish the names or other identifiable information of victims in the campus department's Daily Crime Log, in any Timely Warnings issued or online. In accordance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, a victim may request that no directory information maintained by the College be released absent his/her prior, written consent.

The complaint procedure will be conducted as confidentially as reasonably possible to protect the privacy rights of all individuals involved. The College may share information concerning the complaint with parties, advisors, witnesses and/or others during any phase of the procedure on a need-to-know basis and shall share information with union representatives as provided for in M.G.L. c.150E. All individuals with whom information is shared shall be advised of the confidential nature of the information and directed not to discuss the matter with anyone other than an advisor, if applicable.

Complainant Requests No Action and/or Confidentiality

Where a Complainant requests that no action be taken by the College or requests that their identity not be revealed, the College shall take reasonable steps to investigate and respond to the complaint, but shall inform the Complainant that such a request may hamper its ability to fully investigate an alleged violation of this Policy and/or to take appropriate remedial steps, including disciplinary action. Where an allegation of Prohibited Conduct involves the potential of an ongoing threat to the health, safety or security of members of the College community or a potential adverse employment action, the Affirmative Action Officer, or in the case of an allegation of Sex-Based Harassment, the Title IX Coordinator, shall inform the Complainant that it cannot ensure confidentiality and disclosure of their name may likely be required.

Children (a person under the age of 18) may be students at the College, or may be engaged in activities sponsored by the College or by third-parties utilizing College facilities. In such instances, where an employee has reasonable cause to believe that a child is suffering physical or emotional injury, resulting from among other causes, sexual abuse, including Sex-Based Harassment, the employee and the College may be obligated to comply with the mandatory reporting requirements established at M.G.L. Chapter 119, Section 51A-E. In such cases, the employee is directed to immediately report the matter to the College's Affirmative Action and/or Title IX Coordinator, who, in consultation with other officials, shall contact the Commonwealth's Department of Children and Families and/or law enforcement. An employee may also contact local law enforcement authorities or the Department of Children and Families directly in cases of suspected abuse or neglect. State law also maintains mandatory reporting requirements for certain occupations where abuse or neglect is suspected of adults age 60 or older or children and adults with disabilities. For more information on these reporting

requirements please contact the College's Affirmative Action Officer or Title IX Coordinator.

The College prohibits retaliation against any person who presents a formal or informal complaint of sexual violence or who testifies or offers evidence connected with a complaint. Retaliation is a violation of the Policy on Affirmative Action and could result in disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion or termination from the College.

Protections for Victims of Sexual Violence – A victim of sexual violence shall:

- Be provided with a copy of the College's Sexual Violence Victim's Rights and Information Policy (Policy on Affirmative Action or PAA)
- Have the right to, or not to seek assistance from campus administration or campus law enforcement;
- Not be discouraged by college officials from reporting an incident to both on-campus and offcampus authorities.
- Be provided assistance in contacting local law enforcement if requested and have the full and prompt assistance and cooperation of campus personnel should a civil and/or criminal complaint be pursued;
- Be free from any suggestion that they somehow contributed to or had a shared responsibility in the violent act.
- Receive the same level of support at any proceeding before college officials as is permitted to the accused party, including the presence of a representative during any disciplinary proceeding and the right to be notified in a timely manner of the outcome of such proceedings and any appeal right available
- Receive full and prompt cooperation from college personnel in obtaining and securing evidence (including medical evidence) necessary for any potential criminal proceedings.
- Have access to existing College counseling and medical professionals, victim support services, and to obtain referrals to off-campus counseling and support services if desired.
- Be permitted to attend classes, work and participate in college activities free from unwanted contact or proximity with the accused individual(s) insofar as the College is permitted and able;
- Be permitted to request changes to an academic schedule if such changes are requested by the alleged victim and are reasonably available; and
- Be informed of any no-contact or no-trespass orders issued to the accused by the College and the College's commitment to honor any court-is-sued restraining or protective orders, to the extent permitted by law.

Health and Support Services - Various health and support services are available on and off campus for victims of sexual violence. For information about such services, including counseling, please contact the Affirmative Action and/or Title IX Coordinator and/or Counseling and Wellness Center.

Rape Crisis Center Contact Information - The following is a list of Rape Crisis Centers in Massachusetts. As the following contact information may be subject to change, current contact information on rape crisis centers in Massachusetts can be found at the Commonwealth's Executive Office of Health and Human Services' Website under "Consumer" information at: https://www.mass.gov/service-details/rapecrisis

Cape Cod & Islands

Independence House* Hotline: 800-439-6507

Hyannis, Falmouth, Orleans, Providence

(*Dedicated Center / MOU with CCCC Free to all staff & students)

Greater Boston Area

Boston Area Rape Crisis Center, Cambridge, (617) 492-7273 Hotline, (617) 492-6434 Northeastern Massachusetts

North Shore Rape Crisis Center, Beverly, (800) 922-8772 Hotline, (978) 921-8729 Rape Crisis Ser-vices of Greater Lowell, (800) 542-5212 Hotline, (978) 452-8723 YWCA of Greater Lawrence, (877) 509-9922 SA Hotline, (978) 686-8840

Central Massachusetts

Rape Crisis Center of Central Mass., Worcester, (800) 870-5905 Hotline, (508) 852-7600 Rape Crisis Center of Central Mass., Fitchburg, (800) 870-5905 Wayside Victim Services, Milford, (800) 511-5070 Hotline, (508) 478-4205 Voices Against Violence, Framingham, (800) 593-1125 Hotline, (508) 626-8686

Southeastern Massachusetts

A Safe Place, Nantucket, (508) 228-2111 Hotline, (508) 228-0561 Independence House, Hyannis, (800) 439-6507 Hotline, (508) 778-6782 Women Support Services, Vineyard Haven, (508) 696-7233 Greater New Bedford Women Center, New Bedford, (888) 839-6636 Hotline New Hope, Attleboro, (800) 323-4673 Hotline/TTY Stanley Street Women Center, Fall River, (508) 675-0087 Hotline, (508) 673-3328 Womansplace Crisis Center, Brockton, (508) 588-8255 SA Hotline, (508) 894-2869

Western Massachusetts

Elizabeth Freeman Center, Pittsfield, (413) 443-0089 Hotline, (413) 499-2425 Every-Woman Center, Amherst, (413) 545-0800 Hotline, (888) 337-0800 NELCWIT, Greenfield, (413) 772-0806 YWCA, Springfield, (800) 796-8711 YWCA of Western Mass, Westfield, (800) 479-6245 Hotline

Disciplinary Sanctions and Procedures

College disciplinary sanctions are detailed in the Student Handbook and College Catalog and are published annually online. Possible sanctions include verbal or written warnings, restrictions/loss of privileges, community educational service, restitution, probation, suspension and/or expulsion or any combination of the above. The Handbook provides, in part, that the accuser and the accused have the same right and opportunity to have others present (in support and advisory roles) during a campus

disciplinary hearing. Notification of results to both the accuser and the accused will be made in the same manner and, in the same time frame. In the case that an alleged survivor (victim) dies as a result of a crime, the alleged victim's next of kin will be notified of the results of any disciplinary proceedings. A student found guilty of violating the College Sexual Misconduct, Relationship Violence and Stalking Policy, could be criminally prosecuted in the courts of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Student survivors (victims) have the option to change their academic schedules after an alleged sexual assault, if such changes are reasonably available. capecod.edu/complaints

As a public institution, the College must provide due process to students and employees accused of sexual misconduct, domestic violence, dating violence and stalking while also ensuring the complainants protection under Title IX. The disciplinary hearing shall take place as soon as possible after the filing of the initial report, taking into consideration the need to conduct a timely investigation. Proceedings will provide a prompt, fair and impartial investigation and resolution.

The campus student disciplinary procedures are clearly defined in the Cape Cod Community College Policy on Affirmative Action published annually online and emailed to students and staff. Sexual offenses and sexual assault are addressed specifically in the policy consistent with the Sexual Misconduct, Relationship Violence and Stalking Policy described herein, and addresses alleged offenses regardless of where the offense occurred. A survivor cannot be required to sign a nondisclosure agreement or to otherwise agree to a prohibition from discussing the case.

- The accuser and the accused have the same right and opportunity to have others present (in support and advisory roles) during a campus disciplinary hearing;
- Notification of the final results to both the accuser and the accused will be made in writing in the same manner and in the same time frame. This notification does not constitute a violation of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). The outcome of a disciplinary proceeding means only the College's determination with respect to the alleged offense and any sanction that is imposed against the accused.
- In the case that an alleged survivor/accuser dies as a result of a crime, the alleged accuser's next of kin will be notified of the results of any disciplinary proceedings.

A student found responsible for violating the College Sexual Misconduct, Relationship Violence and Stalking Policy, could be criminally prosecuted in the courts of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Internal sanctions could include suspension, probation, expulsion, dismissal and other options that look to mitigate the situation and return the victim to pre-offending conditions. Survivors (victims) have the option to change their academic schedules, work schedules (if applicable) and transportation options (if applicable) after an alleged sexual assault or sexual misconduct violation, if such changes are reasonably available.

The college reserves the right to suspend a student on an interim basis when it reasonably concludes that a student; (a) poses a threat to health or safety; (b) pos-es a threat to college property or equipment; (c) is disruptive or interferes with the normal operations of the college; or (d) is charged with a serious violation of state or federal law. In such cases, the College shall provide the student of the specific reason(s) for the interim action. During a students' interim suspension, the college reserves the right to prohibit the student from entering upon the college's property or participating in any college activities absent written authorization from an appropriate official at the college.

Sex Offender Registration Policy Statement

The Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act (CSCPA) (Section 1601 of Public Law 106-386) is a federal law enacted on October 28, 2000 that provides for tracking of convicted, registered sex offenders enrolled at, or employed (including volunteers) at, institutions of higher education. The Act amends the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act to require institutions of higher education to issue a statement, in addition to other disclosures required under that Act, advising the campus community information provided by a State concerning how registered sex offenders may be obtained. The CSCPA also amends the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) to clarify that nothing in the Act can prohibit an educational institution from disclosing information provided to the institution concerning registered sex offenders.

How to Inquire

Information concerning level 2 and level 3 offenders is available as follows:

- Contact the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Sex Offender Registry Board (S.O.R.B.), via mail at P.O. Box 4547, Salem, MA 01970, or via phone at
- (978)740-6400 or (800) 93 (MEGAN) (Massachusetts only).
- Contact the local police department in the city or town where the sex offender currently resides, if known, or where the sex offender attends school.
- On-line on the S.O.R.B. website at www.mass.gov/sorb (Level 3 information).
- Contact the CCCC College Police and Public Safety Department, 2240 Iyannough Road, West Barnstable, MA or by phone (774) 330-4349 or ext. 4349 at any college phone.

Registered sex offenders are required to notify the College of their status by contacting the Vice President of Student Services/Affairs and Enrollment Management. Each case is reviewed individually to ensure compliance with the state and local registration laws/ procedures. Level 2 and Level 3 offender information is available upon written request through the Public Safety Department. Level 1 information is maintained on file and is available to law enforcement personnel only.

Additionally, the Vice President of Student Services/Affairs and Enrollment Management conducts Criminal Offender Records Information (CORI) checks on all students prior to placement in an internship, practicum, clinical experience or other activity where they may interact with vulnerable populations. CORI information that indicates that a student is a registered sex offender is shared with the Public Safety Department.

Information contained in the Sex Offender Registry shall not be used to commit a crime against an offender or to engage in illegal discrimination or harassment of an offender. Any person who improperly uses Sex Offender Registry information shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$5,000 or by imprisonment in a jail or house of correction for not more than one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

Clery Reportable Crime Statistics

All reported crimes must be recorded. (i) An institution must include in its crime statistics all crimes reported to a campus security authority for purposes of Clery Act reporting. Clery Act reporting does not require initiating an investigation or disclosing identifying information about the victim, as defined in Section 40002(a)(20) of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 [42 U.S.C. 13925(a)(20)]. *** This is a non-residential campus.

Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act and Campus SaVe Act

On March 7, 2013, President Obama signed into law the Violence against Women Reauthorization Act (VAWA) which imposed new requirements on colleges and universities under its Campus Sexual Violence Elimination Act (SaVE). The requirements act to add to, refine, clarify and amend the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act and act to reinforce Title IX. The Campus SaVE Act adds offenses involving domestic violence, dating violence and stalking to the crimes that institutions must report in the Annual Safety & Security Report. The Campus SaVE Act also expands the categories of reportable "hate crimes" to include those based on bias against gender identity or national origin consistent with Federal statutes. The Campus SaVE Act amended the definition of sexual offenses and the category of reportable "sex offenses" to include rape, sodomy, sexual assault with an object, fondling, incest and statutory rape consistent with the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigations. The Annual Safety & Security Report must also include descriptions of the institution's internal procedures to resolve issues of domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking, resources on-and-off-campus, as well as descriptions of its educational and preventative programs.

Specific Information about Classifying Crime Statistics

The preceding statistics are published in accordance with the standards and guidelines used by the Federal Bureau of Investigation Uniform Crime Reporting Handbook and the federal law, the Clery Act. The number of victims involved in a particular incident

is indicated for the following crime classifications: Murder/ Non-Negligent Manslaughter, Negligent Manslaughter, Forcible and Non-Forcible Sex Offenses, Aggravated Assault. For example, if an aggravated assault occurs and there are three victims, this would be counted as three aggravated assaults in the crime statistics chart.

The number of incidents involving a particular offense is indicated for the following crime categories (includes one offense per distinct operation): Robbery, Burglary, Larceny, and Arson. For example, if five students are walking across campus together and they are robbed, this would count as one instance of robbery in the crime statistics chart. In cases of motor vehicle theft, each vehicle stolen is counted. In cases involving Liquor Law, Drug Law, and Illegal Weapons violations, each person who was arrested is indicated in the arrest statistics. If an arrest includes offenses for multiple liquor or drug law violations, it is only counted as a Drug Law Violation as that is the more egregious offense.

The statistics captured under the "Referred for Disciplinary Action" section for Liquor Law, Drug Law, and Illegal Weapons violations indicate the number of people who are referred to the Office of Student Conduct and found responsible for violating those specific laws. Being found responsible includes a

referral that resulted in disciplinary action being initiated by the Office of Student Conduct and a record of the action being kept on file.

CCCC Public Safety Hate Crime statistics are separated by their category of prejudice. Statistics for Hate Crimes are counted in each specific Clery re-portable crime category and therefore, are part of the overall statistics reported for each year. The only exception to this is the addition of a bias motivated simple assault resulting in bodily injury; the law requires that this statistic be reported as a hate crime even though there is no requirement to report the crime in any other area of the compliance document.

Specific Information about the Crime Statistics Reported by CCCC College Police

Unless otherwise indicated, all statistics are from incidents that were reported to CCCC College Police. "Reported to Other Campus Agencies" includes crime statistics from incidents reported by other college authorities (e.g. CSA's).

Clery Reportable Offense Definitions

Aggravated Assault: an unlawful attack by one per-son upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe or aggravated bodily injury. This type of assault usually is accompanied using a weapon or by means likely to produce death or great bodily harm. It is not necessary that injury result from an aggravated assault when a gun, knife, or other weapon is used which could or probably would result in a serious potential injury if the crime were successfully completed. Arson: Any willful or malicious burning or attempt to burn, with or without intent to defraud, a dwelling, house, public building, motor vehicle or aircraft, personal property, etc.

Burglary: The unlawful entry of a structure to commit a felony or a theft. For reporting purposes this definition includes: unlawful entry with intent to commit a larceny or a felony; breaking and entering with intent to commit a larceny; housebreaking; safecracking; and all attempts to commit any of the aforementioned.

Motor Vehicle Theft: The theft or attempted theft of a motor vehicle (Classify as motor vehicle theft all cases where automobiles are taken by persons not having lawful access even though the vehicles are later abandoned-including joy riding).

Murder and Non-negligent Manslaughter: The willful (non-negligent) killing of one human being by another.

Manslaughter by Negligence: The killing of another person through gross negligence.

Robbery: The taking or attempting to take anything of value from the care, custody, or control of a person or persons by force or threat of force, violence, and/or causing the victim fear.

Weapon Law Violations: The violation of laws or ordinances dealing with weapon offenses, regulatory in nature, such as: manufacture, sale, or possession of deadly weapons; carrying deadly weapons, concealed or openly; furnishing deadly weapons to minors; aliens possessing deadly weapons; all

attempts to commit any of the aforementioned.

Drug Law Violations: Violations of state and local laws relating to the unlawful possession, sale, use, growing, manufacturing, and making of narcotic drugs. The relevant substances include opium or cocaine and their derivatives (morphine, heroin, codeine); marijuana; synthetic narcotics (Demerol, methadone's); and dangerous non-narcotic drugs (barbiturates, Benzedrine).

Liquor Law Violations: The violation of laws or ordinances prohibiting: the manufacture, sale, transporting, furnishing, possessing of intoxicating liquor; maintaining unlawful drinking places; bootlegging; operating a still; furnishing liquor to a minor or in-temperate person; using a vehicle for illegal transportation of liquor; drinking on a train or public conveyance; all attempts to commit any of the afore- mentioned. (Drunkenness and driving under the influence are not included in this definition.)

Dating Violence: Violence or abuse by a person who is or was in a romantic or intimate relationship with the victim, such as: Hitting, slapping, punching, kicking, pulling hair, sexual misconduct, use of a weapon, or other physical misconduct; Damaging one's property; Driving recklessly to scare someone; Emotional abuse including, but not limited to, controlling what the other person does, where the other person goes, limiting the other person's contacts with friends, or controlling the other person's money or assets with-out their consent; Harassment directed toward a current or former partner; Threats of abuse against another (whether victim or acquaintance, friend, or family member of the victim). The existence of such a romantic or intimate relationship will be determined based upon the reporting party's statement with consideration of the length and type of relationship and frequency of interaction between the persons. Dating violence does not include situations covered under the definition of domestic violence below.

<u>Domestic Violence</u>: Any violent misdemeanor and felony offenses committed by a person who (a) is or was a spouse or intimate partner of the victim, (b) shares a child in common with the victim, (c) lives or lived with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner, (d) is or was in a substantive dating or engagement relationship with the victim, (e) is a relative of the victim (whether blood, step, adoptive or foster), or (f) is or was residing together with the victim in the same household, such as: Hitting, slapping, punching, kicking, pulling hair, sexual misconduct, use of a weapon, or other physical misconduct; Emotional abuse including, but not limited to, controlling what the other person does, where the other person goes, limiting the other person's contacts with friends, or controlling the other person's money or assets with-out their consent; Threats that put a person in the relationship in fear of imminent harm.

Stalking: A course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to fear for her, his, or others' safety, or to suffer substantial emotional distress. A "course of conduct" means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly or indirectly, including through third parties, by any action, method, de-vice, or means follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or communicates to or about, a person, or interferes with a person's property, such as: Non-con sensual communication in any form whatsoever (e.g., face-to-face, verbal, written, physical, online, telephone, text, email, or instant messages, posts on internet sites, letters, notes, gifts); Gathering information about an individual from family, friends, co-workers, and/or classmates, or electronic means such as installing spy-ware on a computer or using global positioning systems (GPS).

Sex Offenses-Forcible: Any sexual act directed against another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent.

- Forcible Rape The carnal knowledge of a person, forcibly and/or against the person's a. will; or not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity (or because of his/her youth).
- Forcible Sodomy Oral or anal sexual intercourse with another person, forcibly and/or b. against that person's will; or not forcibly against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving con-sent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- c. Sexual Assault with an Object - The use of an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate, however-er slightly, the genital or anal opening of the body of another person, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or not forcibly or against the per-son's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.
- d. Forcible Fondling - The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, forcibly and/or against that person's will; or, not forcibly or against the person's will where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her youth or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity.

<u>Sex Offenses-Non-Forcible</u>: Unlawful, non-forcible sexual intercourse.

- Incest Non-forcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- Statutory Rape Non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age b. of consent.

Hate Crime Classifications

Characteristics or groups of persons protected from discrimination by law and under this Policy, including:

- Age Persons 40 years of age or older. a.
- Color Variations in skin tone among persons of the same race. b.
- Disability A person with a disability is one who has a physical or mental impairment that C. substantially limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such impairment, or is regarded as having such impairment. Examples include, but are not limited to, the following: Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), Alcoholism; Asthma; Blindness or other visual impairments; Cancer; Cerebral palsy; Depression; Diabetes, Epilepsy; Hearing or speech impairments; Heart Disease; Migraine Headaches; Multiple sclerosis; Muscular dystrophy; Orthopedic impairments; Paralysis; Thyroid gland disorders; Tuberculosis; loss of body parts.
- d. Ethnicity - See National Origin.
- e. Gender - A person's sex, either male or female.
- Gender Identity Gender identity is a term that covers a multitude of sexual identities f. including, but not limited to, transgender individuals, who are persons whose gender identity

- or gender presentation falls outside of stereotypical gender norms.
- Genetic Information Any written, recorded individually identifiable result of a genetic test or g. ex-planation of such a result or family history pertaining to the presence, absence, variation, alteration, or modification of a human gene or genes.
- National Origin A "national origin group" or "ethnic group" is a group sharing a common h. language, culture, ancestry, and/or other similar social characteristics.
- i. Persons of Color - Members of the following racial classifications: Black, American Indian/Native Alaskan, Asian/Pacific Islander, and Hispanic/Latino.
- Race Discrimination laws do not contain a definition of "race," but are interpreted to j. prohibit discrimination on the basis of ancestry or physical or cultural characteristics associated with a certain race, such as skin color, hair texture or styles, or certain facial features, and on the basis of stereotypes and assumptions about abilities, traits, or the performance of individuals of certain racial groups. All individuals, including persons of more than one race and the following racial classifications, are protected from discrimination:
 - Black: All persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.
 - White (not of Hispanic origin): Persons having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East.
 - Hispanic/Latino: All persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central, Latin or South American or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race. Cape Verdean: All persons having origins in the Cape Verde Islands.
 - Asian or Pacific Islander: All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent or the Pacific Islands, including, for example, the areas of China, India, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands and Samoa.
 - American Indian or Alaskan Native: All persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America, and who maintain cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.
- Religion "Religion" and "creed" have the same or equivalent meaning: all religious and k. spiritual observances, practices, and sincerely held beliefs.
- l. Sexual Orientation - Actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality or bisexuality, either by orientation or by practice.
- Veteran Any person who is a member of, applies to perform, or has an obligation to m. perform, ser-vice in a uniformed military service of the United States, including the National Guard.

If at any time subsequent to the implementation of this Policy, additional protected classifications are established under applicable law, individuals in those classifications shall be protected against discrimination under this Policy.

Hate Crime Offenses Reported by Year

None of the offenses that occurred on the main campus, Hyannis Center, Plymouth Aircraft Maintenance Technology Facility or Funeral Service Program were reported as Hate Crimes that were motivated by race, color, religion, national origin, gender identity, sexual orientation, or disability. The 2023 statistics were provided by Bridgewater State University campus which supports the Funeral Service Program and provides residential housing for AMT students and did not occur on Cape Cod Community College property or involve CCCC students.

2021

LOCATION	CRIME	BIAS
Main Campus		
Hyannis Center		
Plymouth AMT		
Funeral Service Program		

2022

LOCATION	CRIME	BIAS
Main Campus		
Hyannis Center		
Plymouth AMT		
Funeral Service Program (BSU Campus)		

2023

2023		
LOCATION	CRIME	BIAS
Main Campus		
Hyannis Center		
Plymouth AMT (BSU Residential)	Vandalism	Race
	Vandalism	Sexual Orientation
	Vandalism	Sexual Orientation
	Vandalism	Gender
	Assault	Sexual Orientation
Funeral Service Program (BSU Campus)	Vandalism	Race
	Vandalism	Sexual Orientation
	Vandalism	Sexual Orientation
	Vandalism	Gender
	Assault	Sexual Orientation

Geography

The physical parameters of crime reporting under this report are determined and defined by the Clery Act. Statistics are reported for crimes that occur: (1) on campus, (2) on public property within or immediately adjacent to the campus, and (3) in or on non-campus buildings or property that your institution owns or controls. The definitions for these geographic categories are Clery Act specific

Definitions

- On-campus: Any building or property owned or controlled by an institution within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area and used by the institution in direct support of, or in a manner related to, the institution's educational purposes, including residence halls; and any building or property that is within or reasonably contiguous to the aforementioned that is owned by the institution but controlled by another person, is frequently used by students, and supports institutional purposes (such as a food or other retail vendor).
- Public Property: All public property, including thoroughfares, streets, sidewalks, and parking facilities, that is within the campus, or immediately adjacent to and accessible from the campus.
- Non-campus: Any building or property owned or controlled by a student organization that is officially

recognized by the institution; or any building or property owned or controlled by an institution that is used in direct support of, or in relation to, the institution's educational purposes, is frequently used by students, and is not within the same reasonably contiguous geographic area of the institution.

WEST BARNSTABLE CAMPUS - CRIME STATISTICS

Non-Campus includes Martha's Vineyard Regional High School. The Non-Campus statistics for MVRS were provided by Oak Bluffs Police Department. These incidents did not occur on Cape Cod Community College property or involve CCCC students.

Categories	On Ca	mpus		Non-	Campus		Publi	c Proper	ty	Unfo	ınded	
Criminal Offenses	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021
Murder/Non Negligent Manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Manslaughter by Negligence	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sex Offenses/VAWA Offense Rape	0	0	0	0	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	4	2	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Domestic Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dating Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stalking (VAWA Offense)	0	0	1	0	11	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Alcohol	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Alcohol	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Clery Geography - West Barnstable Campus



HYANNIS CENTER CAMPUS - CRIME STATISTICS

Categories	On Campus			Non-Campus			Public	Proper	ty	Unfounded		
Criminal Offenses	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2022	2021	2020	2023	2022	2021
Murder/Non Negligent Manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Manslaughter by Negligence	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sex Offenses/VAWA Offense Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Domestic Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dating Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stalking (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Alcohol	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Alcohol	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Clery Geography – Hyannis Center



PLYMOUTH AVIATION CAMPUS - CRIME STATISTICS

The Non-Campus statistics were provided by Bridgewater State University. These incidents did not occur on Cape Cod Community College property or involve CCCC students. They are included here because some Plymouth Aviation students reside at BSU have access to campus facilities. For information on residential fire statistics, please reference the Campus Crime Report found at https://www.bridgew.edu/about-us/police-department

Categories	On Campus			Non-Campus			Public	Proper	ty	Unfounded		
Criminal Offenses	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2022	2021	2020	2023	2022	2021
Murder/Non Negligent Manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Manslaughter by Negligence	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sex Offenses/VAWA Offense Rape	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Domestic Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dating Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stalking (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Drugs	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Alcohol	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Alcohol	0	0	0	200	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Clery Geography – Plymouth Aviation



FUNERAL SERVICES PROGRAM - CRIME STATISTICS

Categories	On Campus			Non-Campus			Public	Propert	ty	Unfounded		
Criminal Offenses	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021
Murder/Non Negligent Manslaughter	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Manslaughter by Negligence	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sex Offenses/VAWA Offense Rape	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated Assault	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Domestic Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dating Violence (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stalking (VAWA Offense)	0	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Weapons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Drugs	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Drugs	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arrest for Alcohol	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Discipline for Alcohol	0	0	0	200	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Clery Geography – Funeral Services Program (BSU)

The Non-Campus statistics were provided by Bridgewater State University. These incidents did not occur on Cape Cod Community College property or involve CCCC students. They are included here because the CCCC Funeral Service program is located at BSU and students have access to campus facilities.

